# **Rutland** County Council

Catmose Oakham Rutland LE15 6HP. Telephone 01572 722577 Facsimile 01572 75307 DX28340 Oakham

Minutes of the **MEETING of the PLACES SCRUTINY PANEL** held in the Council Chamber, Catmose, Oakham, Rutland, LE15 6HP on Thursday, 7th July, 2016 at 7.00 pm

**PRESENT:** Mr J Lammie Mr O Bird

Mr J Dale Mr A Mann
Mr M Oxley Mr A Stewart

Mr K Thomas

**ABSENT:** Mr E Baines Mr N Begy

Mr W Cross

**OFFICERS** 

**PRESENT:** Mr D Brown Director for Places (Environment,

Planning and Transport

Mr P Phillipson Director for Places (Development and

Economy)

#### 113 RECORD OF MEETING

The Record of the Meeting of the Places Scrutiny Panel held on 7 April 2016, copies of which had been previously circulated were confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

#### 114 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Mr Bird Agenda Item 10 Mr Bird declared a non-pecuniary interest

as he was a member of the Oakham

Neighbourhood Plan Steering Group.

# 115 PETITIONS, DEPUTATIONS AND QUESTIONS

No petitions, deputations or questions had been received.

#### 116 QUESTIONS WITH NOTICE FROM MEMBERS

No questions with notice had been received from Members.

### 117 NOTICES OF MOTION FROM MEMBERS

No notices of motion had been received from Members.

# 118 CONSIDERATION OF ANY MATTER REFERRED TO THE PANEL FOR A DECISION IN RELATION TO CALL IN OF A DECISION

No matter had been referred to the Panel for a decision in relation to call-in of a decision in accordance with Procedure Rule 206.

# 119 REVENUE AND CAPITAL OUTTURN 2015-16

Report No. 109/2016 from the Director for Resources was received.

The Portfolio Holder, Mr Mathias, introduced the report, the purpose of which was to inform Cabinet of the draft outturn figures (subject to audit) for the financial year 2015/16 and provide an update on the status of the 2016/17 budget. In reporting the outturn, Cabinet and where necessary Council was being asked to carry forward some budgets to 2016/17, put aside some additional funding in earmarked reserves and agree an increase in ceilings on the Insurance and Legal earmarked reserve.

The following points were raised during discussion:

- i) The reduction in the Road Maintenance budget from £1,011,500 (2015/16) to £827,500 (2016/17) reflected the savings requested to assist the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP). Members were advised that the Department for Transport had increased the amount of the Highway Grant resulting in more capital funding, with less funding from revenue.
- ii) That the additional Government grant for the permanent repair of potholes is subject to a condition preventing this approach.
- iii) That the outturn for 2015/16 was approximately £150,000 over budget as more waste than expected had been generated. The Council was currently retendering some contracts including the high volume dry mix recycling contract and green waste contract. The contract rates would determine the impact on the outturn for the current financial year.
- iv) Members were advised that the Council received revenue from the civic amenity sites for scrap metal and this was included in the waste management cost centre. This cost centre had a large overall net expenditure as it includes the cost of all waste sent for incineration.
- v) That following the recent Referendum there was no closure of European funding streams at present, with funding in place to 2018; new projects were still being considered as the United Kingdom would remain a full partner until Section 50 was implemented.
- vi) Members were advised that Oakham Town Council was undertaking its own survey of the Kilburn Road Cemetery and the transfer would not take place before the results of the survey were received. Rutland County Council (RCC) was ready to undertake the transfer subject to the legal paperwork being agreed and signed.
- vii) Members were informed that RCC was providing its own transport to cut the journey time for students from the southern villages. The possibility of using the Call-Connect scheme was being looked into.

### AGREED:

1. That the Panel **NOTED** the contents of Report No. 109/2016.

#### 120 QUARTER 4 PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT REPORT 2015-16

Report No. 104/2016 from the Chief Executive was received.

The Portfolio Holder, Mr Hemsley, introduced the report, the purpose of which was to report to Cabinet on the Council's performance for 2015/16.

The following points were raised during discussion:

i) That consideration could be given to the possibility of generating energy to Oakham Enterprise Park, rather than feeding into the National Grid. Members were advised that the process would need to be co-ordinated with the next phase of general regeneration of the site.

#### AGREED:

1. That the Panel **NOTED** the contents of Report No. 104/2016.

#### 121 CORPORATE PLAN

Report No. 132/2016 from the Chief Executive was received.

Mr Mathias introduced the report the purpose of which was to provide the Scrutiny Panel with the opportunity to be consulted on the Corporate Plan and to feed back to Cabinet any comments as part of the consultation process.

The following points were raised during discussion:

- i) That the Council was not looking at the disposal of its assets at this time merely revaluing its assets. Should opportunities to secure additional assets arise in the future a further review would be undertaken.
- ii) Members felt that the chart providing the breakdown of the workforce against Full Time Equivalent employees (FTE) was misleading and unclear.
- iii) Members were advised that the latest roll out of Fibre broadband would also include taking fibre direct to premises.
- iv) RCC believed the creation of 300 jobs per annum was achievable, especially as the Council was looking to develop Oakham Enterprise Park and with the new builds in the future that there was likely to be that growth.

The Chairman, Mr Lammie, reminded Members that they were able to comment individually.

# AGREED:

1. That the Panel **NOTED** the Draft Corporate Plan (Appendix A to Report No. 132/2016).

# 122 POLICY TERMS OF REFERENCE AND SCOPING

Report No. 139/2016 from the Director for Places (Development and Economy) was received.

The Chairman, Mr Lammie, informed Members that Council was looking to undertake a different approach to Scrutiny, with policy creation; looking to bring forward areas without policy for the Panel to look at, consider and work on. Three issues had been highlighted within the Places Directorate. The proposal was to look at one area over a one year cycle with a firm policy being in place by the 2017 summer meeting of this Panel.

The Director for Places (Development and Economy), Mr Phillipson, introduced the report the purpose of which was to consider how the Places Scrutiny Panel should engage in the development of policies for neighbourhood plans, refugee housing and fairness in localism.

The following points were raised during the discussion:

- That there was a need for a Neighbourhood Plan policy given the complexities emerging. There was a realistic requirement for a working group to look at policies and governance requirements to overlay over existing policies; giving a clear steer around policy where not already picked up; to guide on existing and future Plans and look at directives around RCC existing policies providing a prospective of these.
- ii) That Rutland had engaged in the Syrian Vulnerable People Relocation (SVPR) Scheme and was likely to receive its first refugees in December. Rutland did not have a clear policy therefore there was a need to review the process. Funding had been increased by the Government with changes to the Immigration Act allowing the redistribution of unaccompanied asylum seeking children. Under the SVPR Scheme Rutland was working with surrounding local authorities and in particular with Leicester City to outsource their services.
- iii) That there were a number of services delivered by RCC or parish/town councils where there was disparity across the county. There was a need to local at more broadly and approach parishes to ascertain a more appropriate level of service in the area.

Following a detailed discussion Members agreed to focus on Neighbourhood Plans.

Aim: Policy to work across all Neighbourhood Plans, existing and future; to correlate Neighbourhood Plans and the Council's existing policies and how these should be prioritised to create a structured local Neighbourhood Plan in accordance with the Local Plan Framework whilst retaining the community's aspirations.

---oOo— 8.23pm Mr Dale left the meeting and did not return. ---oOo---

Deadline: Summer 2017 meeting. Policy to be brought to this Panel.

The Director for Places, Mr Phillipson confirmed that there would be full officer support, with immediate effect.

Sub Group to set the Terms of Reference and look at data to fulfil scope. Terms of Reference to be brought to the September meeting of this Panel.

Working Group: Mr Bird, Mr Lammie, Mr Mann, Mr Oxley and Mr Stewart.

Working Group meeting date would be confirmed by email correspondence.

### AGREED:

- 1. To consider the Terms of Reference and scope of a Neighbourhood Plan Policy and how it should be developed.
- 2. To a deadline of Summer 2017 with the policy to be brought to this Panel.
- 3. That the Terms of Reference would be brought to the September meeting of this Panel.
- 4. The membership of the Working Group as detailed above.
- 5. That the Working Group meeting date would be confirmed by email correspondence.

#### 123 SCRUTINY PROGRAMME 2016/17 & REVIEW OF FORWARD PLAN

Agenda items for the meeting to be held on Thursday 15 September 2016:

- i) Home to School Transport
- ii) Quarterly Reports
- iii) Neighbourhood Plan Policy Group

Members requested that the Panel would receive updates on the other two policies: Refugee Housing and Fairness in Localism.

Future agenda items:

- i) Highway Asset Management Plan
- ii) Signs Policy

The Chairman, Mr Lammie, advised Members that the Chief Executive, Mrs Briggs, and the Scrutiny Commission were looking at the structure of Scrutiny Panel meetings to enable Panels to undertake more effective scrutiny of key documents. The Chief Executive would be consulting with Scrutiny Panel Chairs about the framework in August 2016.

---oOo— 8.30pm Mr Stewart left the meeting and did not return ---oOo---

#### 124 ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS

There was no urgent business.

# 125 DATE AND PREVIEW OF NEXT MEETING

Thursday 15 September 2016, 7.00pm

---000---

The Chairman declared the meeting closed at 8.33 pm.

---oOo----